
 

 

Notice & Agenda 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 

Tuesday, March 20, 2018 

9:00 AM 

Benson City Council Chambers – 1410 Kansas Ave, Benson, MN 
 

 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 
 

        Time     Reference                                      Item                                             
 

 9:00 a.m.  Call to Order and Roll Call  
 

   9:01 a.m.                     Approve Agenda 

  9:03 a.m.  Consent Agenda  

  1-3  (1) Minutes from the March 6, 2018 Regular Meeting 

  4-44  (2) 2018 Annual Highway Report 

  45-46  (3) Consider approval of County Policies 

 

 9:04 a.m.  Consider Approval of Commissioner warrants and review Auditor 

warrants reviewed 
 9:05 a.m.                  Commissioner and Board reports  

 9:20 a.m.  County Administrator report 

 9:25 a.m.  Citizens Comments 
 

 9:25 a.m.  Kim Saterbak, Auditor 

  47-49  Consider approving the purchase a tax-forfeited property by the 

City of Appleton  

 9:45 a.m.  Catie Lee, Human Services 

  50  Consider approval of a Daycare Grant for Prairie Play House Child 

Care in Appleton  

  51-58  Monthly Update  
 

 10:05 a.m.  Other Business 

    Swift County Planning Grants 
 

     10:15 a.m.          Adjournment 



 

SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

March 6, 2018 
  
Chairman Rudningen called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. with all members present. Also present: 

County Administrator Kelsey Baker, County Attorney Danielle Olson, and several other members of the 

public. 

 

Chairman Rudningen asked if there were any changes or additions to the agenda. The time of the 

Wheelage tax discussion was moved from 11:00 AM to 9:25 AM. There were no other changes or 

additions.  

 

03-06-18-01 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

03-06-18-02 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve the 

Consent Agenda items: (1) Approval of Minutes from the February 20, 2018 Regular Meeting, (2) 

Consider approval of the 2017 Annual County Feedlot Officer Annual Report and Performance Credit 

Report, (3) Consider approving a resolution to the MPCA for a potential environmental assistance 

program, (4) Consider approval of the 2018 Swift County Local Government Pay Equity Report. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

03-06-18-03 Commissioner E. Pederson moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the 

Commissioner warrants as follows: Revenue: $38,210.87; Solid Waste: $25,439.30; Road and Bridge: 

$5,850.64, County Ditches Fund $436.00, County Health Insurance, $436.00, Computer Professionals 

Unlimited Inc., $5,795.00, Countryside Public Health , $2,108.75, Geyer Recycling, $5,980.00, 

Hannaher’s, $13,175.59, Neopost USA Inc., $4,757.00, Pflipsen Trucking LLC, $10,836.02, Waste 

Management of Northern Minnesota, $8,255.93, Ziegler Inc., $2,180.50. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Board and Committee Reports were given as follows: Commissioner P. Peterson reported on 6W 

Corrections, Swift County HRA and Small Cities Grant. Commissioner Hendrickx reported on AMC, 

Legislative Conference, and Center for Community Health Improvements. Commissioner Fox reported on 

Hospital meeting and Legislative Conference. Commissioner E. Pederson reported DAC and Swift County 

Historical Museum. Chairman Rudningen reported on Planning & Zoning Commission meeting.  

 

Administrator Baker discussed the Building Projects, Personnel Report, Legislative Conference, and 

Courthouse Schedule. 

 

Chairman Rudningen asked for Citizens comments: There were none. 

 

03-06-18-04. Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded the approval for the 

resolution requesting final payment on SP 076-06-045. Motion carried unanimously.  

  

03-06-18-05 Commissioner E. Pederson moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to open the public 

hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The Public Hearing for the Five Year Highway Construction Plan was opened at 9:25 AM. 

 

County Engineer Andy Sander and Assistant Engineer Paul Petrick were available to answer questions and 

a lengthy discussion was held. 

 

Public comments were made by: David Yost of Murdock, Dean Beyer of Holloway, Gary Marquardt of 

1



 

Hancock, Rod Schlieman of Holloway, Tom Walsh of Murdock, Allen Mumm of Danvers, and Tom Jerve 

of Swenoda Township. 

 

03-06-18-06 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to close the public 

hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The Public Hearing for the Five Year Highway Construction Plan was closed at 10:05 AM. 

 

03-06-18-07 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to approve the 

Five Year Highway Construction Plan. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

A Discussion on Wheelage Tax was held. 

 

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins presented for the approval of a Conditional Use Permit 

#5468 requested by Stanley & Katherine Claussen (Owner) & Riverview, LLP (Purchaser) to establish a 

new 9,500 animal unit (9,500 head) dairy farm in Swenoda Township. 

  

03-06-18-08 Chairman Rudningen moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the Conditional 

Use Permit #5468. Motion carried unanimously.  

  

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins presented for the approval of a Conditional Use Permit 

#5469 requested by Stanley & Katherine Claussen (Owner) & Riverview, LLP (Purchaser) for 

constructing two four-unit dormitory style apartment buildings to be used as onsite housing for employees 

of Swenoda Dairy located on the same property as Swenoda Dairy. 

 

03-06-18-09 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve the 

Conditional Use Permit #5469. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The board recessed at 10:22 AM.  

 

The board reconvened at 10:32 AM. 

 

RDA Director Jennifer Frost discussed the Authorization of Application for the DEED Opportunity Zones 

and a letter of support, a lengthy discussion was held. 

 

03-06-18-10 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the 

Authorization Submission of the Opportunity Zones Application for both tracks and a letter of support 

from the Board of Commissioners. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Commissioner P. Peterson updated the County Board on the Countryside Public Health Alternate 

Discussion. Chairman Eric Rudningen nominated himself to be the Alternate. No other nominations were 

made.  

 

03-06-18-11 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded the motion to 

nominate Chairman Eric Rudningen for the Countryside Public Health Alternate. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

Administrator Baker discussed Strategic Planning, potential Mission Statements, and draft Vision 

Statements. A discussion was held. 

  

03-06-18-12 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to adjourn. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

2



 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:47 AM.  

  

 

 

 

  WITNESSED:  

  

       _____________________________ 

       Eric Rudningen, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 

Request for Board Action 

 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
March 20, 2018 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services Catie Lee 320-843-6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Policy Review and Approval 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Regular board No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Most are County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve Policies 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Human Services Policies 

Number and Name of Policy Policy Purpose Summary of Changes 

402 Business Subsidy Policy To comply with the Business 
Subsidies Act. 

There were no recommended 
changes to the content of the 
Policy. 

403 Adherence to Annual 
Budget 

To ensure the adopted 
financial plan is adhered to. 

There were no recommended 
changes to the content of the 
Policy. 

406 Payments of Grants and 
Subsidies 

Policy sets the limits for 
payment to supported 
organizations for cash flow. 

There were no recommended 
changes to the content of the 
Policy. 

508 Credit Card Policy Policy to identify who is eligible 
for issue and expectations of 
use and reporting. 

Established levels of limits to 
better meet the needs of 
departments 

New Form – Missing Receipt 
Affidavit 

Purpose of form is to verify 
expenses when receipts are 
lost 

New 

All changes are either tracked and identified in the document or are in colored font. The Policies are 
located in the drop box for your review. 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

45



Budget Information 

FUNDING: NA 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text.  
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a Click here to enter text. 
 

46



 

Request for Board Action 

 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
March 20, 2018 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Auditor Kim Saterbak 320-843-6108 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Consider approving the purchase a tax-forfeited property by the City of Appleton 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Agenda No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Yes Tax-Forfeited Property must be approved by the 
Board of Commissioners 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Parcel #22-0298-000 was tax-forfeited to the State of Minnesota for lack of payment of the property 
taxes in 2013.  The City of Appleton has offered to purchase this parcel for $1, plus fees.   The City has 
been maintaining/mowing this parcel for several years.  The City plans to sell this parcel only to a 
buyer that will build a structure on the parcel, increasing its value.    
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST 
/ OTHER PARTIES INVOLVED? 

 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: n/a 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

None None 
 

47



48



49



 

Request for Board Action 

 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
March 20, 2018 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services Catie Lee 320-843-6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Approve one daycare grant 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Regular board No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

No County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve the grant request 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Name Address #children 
in 
Daycare 

Amount 
requested 

Purpose Committee 
Approval 
Date 

Prairie Play House Child 
Care 

50 East 
Rooney Ave. 
Appleton, 
MN 56208 

30 12,497.16 Upgrades to 
facility to meet 
licensing 
standard and to 
replace shelves 
and supplies.  

3/20/18 

 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: Budget approval for these loans has been granted by the board.  
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Approve 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a Click here to enter text. 
 

50



Out of Home Placement Data 1/2012-2/2018 

 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Placement Costs 2015-2018(current month)

2015 2016 2017 2018

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Cost Per Type of Placement 2017

CFC Grp Res Correction Detention

Ext. FC MH Res Total

51



 

 

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Cost Per Type of Placement 2018

CFC Grp Res Correction Detention

Ext. FC MH Res Total

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Total Placements/MO/YR

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

52



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Child Protection Placements by Month and Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Placements for Behavior/Mental Health

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

53



 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Other OOHP (Deliquency, Truancy, CD)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

54



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTS

MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31
2018

HUMAN SERVICES
Receipts  

Beginning Balance $2,296,239.53

Current Month Receipts  $180,121.59

Tax Settlement  $38,171.62

Investments  $200,000.00

Interest on Investments $2,680.19

 

Total Receipts $2,717,212.93

Disbursements
Current Month Disbursements $471,365.87

Investments $200,000.00

Total Disbursements $671,365.87

Ending Fund Balance $2,045,847.06

ENDING FUND BALANCE SUMMARY:
2017 2018

Checking Balance $296,733.03 -$4,152.94

Investments $1,372,000.00 $2,050,000.00

  

Ending Cash Balance $1,668,733.03 $2,045,847.06

INVESTMENT REPORT

BANK TYPE OF ACCOUNT MAT. DATE INT. RATE AMOUNT
CO-OP Credit Union Money Market Account  0.90% 150,000.00$    

Washington Federal 6 Month CD 02/12/18 1.30% 100,000.00$    

Merchants Bank 3 Month CD 03/28/18 1.40% 200,000.00$    

Compass Bank 9 Month CD 04/16/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Community Financial 9 Month CD 05/11/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Baroda 1 Yr CD 07/13/18 1.45% 150,000.00$    

1st National Omaha 1 Year CD 08/15/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Bridger 1 Year CD 09/28/18 1.45% 100,000.00$    

City National Bank 9 Month CD 10/05/18 1.60% 100,000.00$    

Whitney Gulfport 1 Yr CD 11/29/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

Bank of NY Mellon 1 Yr CD 12/28/18 1.65% 200,000.00$    

MAGIC Fund 1 Yr CD 01/18/19 2.00% 50,000.00$      

Quontic Bank 18 Month CD 06/28/19 1.85% 200,000.00$    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 2,050,000.00$ 

55



Swift County Human Services
Ending Monthly Cash & Investment Balances

2009 - 2018

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Average
Jan 1,039,335$     1,116,112$        1,027,808$     977,091$        909,780$         846,281$        983,278$       933,563$       1,668,733$         2,045,847$         $1,154,783
Feb 951,620$        1,069,918$        1,004,522$     829,326$        788,543$         739,793$        882,373$       886,577$       1,562,756$         $968,381
Mar 772,024$        810,381$           848,432$        551,477$        576,608$         601,437$        593,206$       636,635$       1,278,985$         $741,021
Apr 658,915$        732,868$           820,387$        328,272$        451,920$         446,379$        168,803$       352,306$       1,085,797$         $560,627
May 474,455$        576,849$           669,878$        329,407$        300,099$         269,118$        187,841$       289,965$       804,645$            $433,584
Jun 1,247,245$     1,244,642$        1,460,435$     1,218,863$     1,145,907$      1,361,018$     1,187,485$    1,476,200$    2,165,333$         $1,389,681
Jul 1,188,516$     1,349,636$        1,142,375$     1,113,725$     1,094,712$      1,165,952$     1,217,022$    1,483,669$    2,160,790$         $1,324,044
Aug 1,179,585$     1,237,374$        1,228,978$     894,462$        982,736$         1,199,826$     1,126,524$    1,532,984$    1,995,009$         $1,264,164
Sep 948,233$        1,085,187$        1,079,263$     804,086$        714,174$         921,407$        877,167$       1,220,833$    1,650,293$         $1,033,405
Oct 832,082$        878,408$           773,615$        538,645$        627,339$         667,331$        646,265$       1,028,981$    1,459,114$         $827,976
Nov 770,517$        826,623$           741,489$        483,013$        377,803$         477,198$        513,740$       2,056,684$    2,511,571$         $973,182
Dec 1,279,288$     1,279,178$        1,242,733$     1,094,736$     1,057,825$      1,180,113$     1,187,268$    1,888,413$    2,296,240$         $1,389,533

Average 945,151$        1,017,265$        1,003,326$     763,592$        752,287$         822,988$        797,581$       1,148,901$    1,719,939$         2,045,847$         

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000

Average Monthly Cash & Investment Balance
2009-2018

56



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTS

MONTH ENDING FEBRUARY 28
2018

HUMAN SERVICES
Receipts  

Beginning Balance $2,045,847.06

Current Month Receipts  $324,447.01

Tax Settlement  $0.00

Investments  $150,000.00

Interest on Investments $1,022.46

 

Total Receipts $2,521,316.53

Disbursements
Current Month Disbursements $403,624.47

Investments $150,000.00

Total Disbursements $553,624.47

Ending Fund Balance $1,967,692.06

ENDING FUND BALANCE SUMMARY:
2017 2018

Checking Balance -$9,244.33 $67,692.06

Investments $1,572,000.00 $1,900,000.00

  

Ending Cash Balance $1,562,755.67 $1,967,692.06

INVESTMENT REPORT

BANK TYPE OF ACCOUNT MAT. DATE INT. RATE AMOUNT
CO-OP Credit Union Money Market Account  0.90% 100,000.00$    

Merchants Bank 3 Month CD 03/28/18 1.40% 200,000.00$    

Compass Bank 9 Month CD 04/16/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Community Financial 9 Month CD 05/11/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Baroda 1 Yr CD 07/13/18 1.45% 150,000.00$    

1st National Omaha 1 Year CD 08/15/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Bridger 1 Year CD 09/28/18 1.45% 100,000.00$    

City National Bank 9 Month CD 10/05/18 1.60% 100,000.00$    

Whitney Gulfport 1 Yr CD 11/29/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

Bank of NY Mellon 1 Yr CD 12/28/18 1.65% 200,000.00$    

MAGIC Fund 1 Yr CD 01/18/19 2.00% 50,000.00$      

Quontic Bank 18 Month CD 06/28/19 1.85% 200,000.00$    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 1,900,000.00$ 

57



Swift County Human Services
Ending Monthly Cash & Investment Balances

2009 - 2018

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Average
Jan 1,039,335$     1,116,112$        1,027,808$     977,091$        909,780$         846,281$        983,278$       933,563$       1,668,733$         2,045,847$         $1,154,783
Feb 951,620$        1,069,918$        1,004,522$     829,326$        788,543$         739,793$        882,373$       886,577$       1,562,756$         1,967,692$         $1,068,312
Mar 772,024$        810,381$           848,432$        551,477$        576,608$         601,437$        593,206$       636,635$       1,278,985$         $741,021
Apr 658,915$        732,868$           820,387$        328,272$        451,920$         446,379$        168,803$       352,306$       1,085,797$         $560,627
May 474,455$        576,849$           669,878$        329,407$        300,099$         269,118$        187,841$       289,965$       804,645$            $433,584
Jun 1,247,245$     1,244,642$        1,460,435$     1,218,863$     1,145,907$      1,361,018$     1,187,485$    1,476,200$    2,165,333$         $1,389,681
Jul 1,188,516$     1,349,636$        1,142,375$     1,113,725$     1,094,712$      1,165,952$     1,217,022$    1,483,669$    2,160,790$         $1,324,044
Aug 1,179,585$     1,237,374$        1,228,978$     894,462$        982,736$         1,199,826$     1,126,524$    1,532,984$    1,995,009$         $1,264,164
Sep 948,233$        1,085,187$        1,079,263$     804,086$        714,174$         921,407$        877,167$       1,220,833$    1,650,293$         $1,033,405
Oct 832,082$        878,408$           773,615$        538,645$        627,339$         667,331$        646,265$       1,028,981$    1,459,114$         $827,976
Nov 770,517$        826,623$           741,489$        483,013$        377,803$         477,198$        513,740$       2,056,684$    2,511,571$         $973,182
Dec 1,279,288$     1,279,178$        1,242,733$     1,094,736$     1,057,825$      1,180,113$     1,187,268$    1,888,413$    2,296,240$         $1,389,533

Average 945,151$        1,017,265$        1,003,326$     763,592$        752,287$         822,988$        797,581$       1,148,901$    1,719,939$         2,006,770$         

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000

Average Monthly Cash & Investment Balance
2009-2018

58


	01 03-06-18
	02 2018 ANNUAL REPORT
	03 Request for Board Action - Policy Approvals 3.20.18
	04 Request for Board Action-22-0298-000 Request
	04a 2018 Appleton Request
	04b Purchase Price Breakdown
	05 Request for Board Action - Daycare Deferred Loans 3.20.18
	06 Out of Home Placement Data 2-2018
	06a 0118 Fiscal Summary - Revised
	0118 Fiscal Summary
	Sheet1

	2018 Yearly Comparison
	Sheet1


	06b 0218 Fiscal Summary
	0218 Fiscal Summary
	Sheet1

	2018 Yearly Comparison
	Sheet1





